
 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 
Tuesday, April 5, 2022 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, Oregon 

 
5:30 pm URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(See URA Board of Directors Meeting Agenda) 
 

6:00 pm Community Enhancement Program Committee Meeting 
(See CEP Meeting Agenda) 

 
6:30 pm City Council Work Session 

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
City Council Executive Session 

(ORS 192.660(2)(d), Labor Negotiator Consultations) 
(Following the Regular Council Meeting)  

 
Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), this meeting  

will be conducted electronically and will be live streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

 

1

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
6:30 PM WORK SESSION 
 
1. Review of Staff Recommended CIP 

(Capital Improvement Program)   
(Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director) 

 
7:00 PM REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of March 15, 2022 City Council Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, City Recorder) 
B. Approval of March 28, 2022 City Council Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, City Recorder) 
C. Resolution 2022-018 Authorizing an amendment to the existing Angelo Planning Group 

contract for the Sherwood West Re-look Project (Erika Palmer, Planning Manager) 
D. Resolution 2022-019, Appointing Greg Lampros to the Sherwood Planning Commission  

(Erika Palmer, Planning Manager) 
E. Resolution 2022-020, Appointing Teresa Montalvo to the Sherwood Planning Commission 

(Erika Palmer, Planning Manager) 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

7. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Swearing In of New City Council Member (Mayor Mays) (Judge Jack Morris) 
B. Introduction of New Sherwood Police Officer (Ty Hanlon, Police Chief) 
C. Recognition of Eagle Scout Award Recipients (Mayor Mays) 
D. TVF&R Annual State of the District (Fire Chief Weiss) 
E. Proclamation, National Library Week April 3-9, 2022 (Mayor Mays) 
F. Proclamation, National Arbor Day April 29, 2022 (Mayor Mays) 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
April 5, 2022 

 
 

6:30 pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 
 

City Council Executive Session 
(ORS 192.660(2)(d), Labor Negotiator Consultations)  

(Following the Regular Council Meeting) 
 
 
 

Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), this meeting  
will be conducted electronically and will be  

live streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood  

2

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
April 5, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2022-021, Adopting City Council Pillars, Goals, and Deliverables for Fiscal Year 

2022-23 (Keith Campbell, City Manager) 
 
9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
11. ADJOURN to EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
12. CITY COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
A. ORS 192.660(2)(d), Labor Negotiator Consultations (Josh Soper, City Attorney) 

 
13. ADJOURN 

 
  
 

 
How to Provide Citizen Comments and Public Hearing Testimony: Citizen comments and public hearing testimony may be provided in person, in writing, or by 
telephone. Written comments must be submitted at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting start time by e-mail to Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov and 
must clearly state either (1) that it is intended as a general Citizen Comment for this meeting or (2) if it is intended as testimony for a public hearing, the specific public 
hearing topic for which it is intended. To provide comment by phone during the live meeting, please e-mail or call the City Recorder at Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov 
or 503-625-4246 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting start time in order to receive the phone dial-in instructions. Per Council Rules Ch. 2 Section (V)(D)(5), Citizen 
Comments, “Speakers shall identify themselves by their names and by their city of residence.” Anonymous comments will not be accepted into the meeting record. 
 
How to Find out What's on the Council Schedule: City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, generally 
by the Thursday prior to a Council meeting. When possible, Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall and the Sherwood Post Office.  
 
To Schedule a Presentation to the Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation to the City Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of 
your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder, 503-625-4246 or Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov   
 
ADA Accommodations: If you require an ADA accommodation for this public meeting, please contact the City Recorder’s Office at (503) 625-4246 or 
Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time. 
 
 

3

mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:Cityrecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 1 of 16 
 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), this meeting will be conducted electronically and 
will be live streamed at https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

March 15, 2022 
 

WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the work session to order at 6:01 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Kim Young, 

Sean Garland, and Renee Brouse. 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Keith D. Campbell, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Ty Hanlon, Planning Manager Erika Palmer, Senior 
Planner Joy Chang, Records Technician Katie Corgan, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: DLCD representatives Bill Holmstrom, Evan Manvel, and Kevin Young. State 
Representative Courtney Neron. 
 

4. TOPICS: 
 
A.  DLCD Rule Making Presentation 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk explained that she created a presentation (see record, Exhibit 
A) to capture the concerns of the Council and staff about the proposed DLCD rulemaking. She recapped that 
the primary concern was that there was a lot of different rulemaking exercises occurring that staff and Council 
were concerned would create unintended consequences. There were also concerns that these efforts were not 
being coordinated with different departments at the state level and that the cities and counties had not been 
included in the formative stage of the process in a substantive way. She stated there were concerns that 
rulemaking entities did not understand that “one size does not fit all.” She recapped the impacts of HB 2001 as: 
increased density, limited parking requirements, and no home rule authority. She recapped the impacts of the 
Climate Friendly Communities as: limited ability to provide for/require on street parking, the parking 
requirements lacked understanding of suburban communities, overestimating the "market" sensibility, an no 
home rule authority. She explained that the impacts from both HB 2001 and Climate Friendly Communities had 
resulted in two separate rulemaking processes that were being imposed on communities with seemingly little 
cross collaboration occurring. She explained that the consequences of the measures resulted in communities 
struggling to meet middle housing mandates with limited transit, limited ability to provide/require parking, 
disconnection with emergency service providers, and the limitation of community identity. Council President 
Rosener commented that the real issues around the new rules arose when it came to street layouts. Ms. Hajduk 
provided an overview of an example of the impacts of the new rules on an existing subdivision where middle 

4



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 2 of 16 
 

housing could be located. She explained that with the new rules, the subdivision could be comprised of 22 
dwelling units with a total of five on-street parking spaces. Council President Rosener explained that the 
subdivision street was 28-feet wide, per the governor’s executive order, and explained that per the fire district 
requirements, there could only be parking on one side of the street. He continued that when you combine those 
things with fire hydrant locations and driveway spacing in subdivisions that had triplexes and quadplexes, it 
limited on-street parking. He stated that Sherwood had 33% more cars per household than Portland and 
expressed that it was concerning for them to look at the density forecast for the next 3-5 years with these types 
of rules. He referred to the subdivision example on page 2 of the presentation and explained that the subdivision 
did not allow for people to park nearby due to its location along Highway 99W. He stated that it was these types 
of scenarios that needed to allow for planners to have some flexibility to manage good development. Mayor 
Mays stated that one of the strategies for dealing with HB 2001 was to require wider streets, but with the 
proposal of the 28-foot street width maximum, that would not be an option. He explained that parking on both 
sides of the street was not an option because parking on both sides of the street was not permitted in the fire 
district. He requested that the DLCD reconsider the proposal of the 28-foot street width maximum. He explained 
that Sherwood was a community of large families, which meant that those families eventually would likely have 
multiple cars. Council President Rosener stated that Sherwood had the highest student per household ratio of 
any city in the state by a significant margin. Mayor Mays asked the DLCD representatives if there was any 
possibility of adding in flexibility around the 28-foot width maximum rule? Mr. Holmstrom explained that they 
began their rulemaking process in September 2020, and they would hold their first formal public hearing on 
March 31st and the second public hearing on May 19-20th. He explained that in that two month period, changes 
to the proposed rules could be made. Mayor Mays commented that he felt that the proposed rules were “an 
attack on families” and explained that as mayor, the majority of citizen complaints that he heard was parking 
conflicts between neighbors, and he did not want to increase those conflicts. He commented that having 
neighborhoods with few on-street parking spots would prohibit neighborhoods from having friends or family 
over. Council President Rosener reported that Sherwood had approximately 9,200 residents who commuted 
outside of Sherwood for work and explained that Sherwood did not have good access to mass transit. Mr. 
Manvel explained that the DLCD’s work was done at the direction of Governor Brown’s climate change 
Executive Order 20-04 that stated that all state agencies needed to do more work to get back on track to what 
the Oregon legislation had adopted as Oregon’s climate pollution reduction goals. He explained that the DLCD 
was selected to work with ODOT to reform Oregon’s land use transportation planning rules and in doing so, 
think about equity in historically marginalized communities. Mr. Manvel reported that Oregon was far off track 
from meeting its climate pollution reduction goals and a serious course correction was needed. He reported that 
with the current trends, Oregon would miss its goal by four times by 2050. He explained that being off track 
from the goal was having real world effects on Oregonian’s economies, livelihoods, homes and lives, and 
referred to home losses due to wildfires, deaths from extreme heat, and impacts on the shellfish industry. He 
addressed inequity and generational wealth and stated that land use and transportation had a long history of 
inequity and discrimination. He provided examples of deciding where to place transportation facilities, what 
neighborhoods were allowed to gain and pass on wealth through redlining and exclusionary zoning. He reported 
that the average white household had roughly 10 times the average wealth as the average Black household. 
Mr. Manvel explained that the DLCD rulemaking was focused on the eight metropolitan areas of Oregon where 
most transportation pollution happened. The areas were: Portland Metro, Salem-Keizer, Albany Area, Corvallis 
Area, Central Lane, Bend, Middle Rogue, and Rogue Valley. Mayor Mays asked if it was possible to remove 
Sherwood from the Portland Metro region? Councilor Scott stated that it was important to realize that the outer 
limits of the metro suburbs were very different than the inner core of Portland. He commented that historically, 
it has felt like the entire Portland Metro area was treated with a monolithic set of rules that applied to the entire 
area and did not consider the fact that the fringe areas outside of the Metro area were very different from a 
transportation and demographic perspective, and the one-size-fits-all rules was very challenging. Mr. 

5



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 3 of 16 
 

Holmstrom replied that the rulemaking changes were aimed at the eight metropolitan areas around the state 
and there were a wide variety of places in those areas and that he felt that the DLCD had tried to build in some 
flexibility for jurisdictions. Council President Rosener asked if the Climate Pollution Change chart shown on 
page 2 of the presentation took into consideration the expected adoption of electric cars over the next 20 years? 
Mr. Manvel replied that that was included in the chart. Mr. Manvel provided an overview of the DLCD’s timeline 
on page 5 of the presentation and explained that they had a very diverse advisory committee guiding their 
rulemaking process and had endeavored to hear from a lot of different people. He stated that there were two 
categories of rulemaking: regional planning to meet pollution reduction targets and updated land use and 
transportation rules. He stated that the Metro area had accomplished the first goal with the passage of their 
Climate Smart Communities in 2014. He explained that the Climate Smart Strategy was adopted in 2014 and 
approved by LCDC in 2015 and was incorporated and monitored through the Regional Transportation Plan. Mr. 
Manvel outlined the six areas that the commission had directed them to focus their rule updating on and 
explained that they had been tasked with identifying climate-friendly areas where people could get around 
without having to drive/drive far to meet their daily needs and were mostly considered downtowns or 
neighborhood centers. Other areas of focus were: reforming parking management, supporting electric vehicle 
charging, providing high quality pedestrian, bicycle, and transit infrastructure, going beyond focus on motor 
vehicle congestion standards, and prioritizing and selecting projects that meet climate/equity outcomes. Mr. 
Young reported that Metro was pretty far along in implementing the Climate Smart Communities program by 
identifying the Region 2040 centers. He explained that the DLCD’s proposed rules related to the Metro region 
included requiring Metro to establish a requirement for local government adoption of Region 2040 centers and 
land use regulations no later than December 31, 2024. Local governments that had yet to do so shall comply 
by December 31, 2025. Cities with populations over 10,000 were to report on affordable housing production, 
mitigation of displacement, and increasing housing choices within Region 2040 centers every six years and 
would be done in conjunction with the requirement for housing strategies from HB 2003. Mr. Young commented 
that Sherwood had already adopted the Region 2040 centers and land use regulations. Mr. Manvel provided 
an overview of downtown off-street parking in Corvallis and Old Town Sherwood on pages 10-11 of the 
presentation. He explained that the DLCD was concerned about parking because it was a big user of land in 
key areas that the DLCD wanted to be walkable and parking was often over-built. He reported that based on a 
DLCD study of parking in Albany, Oregon, an average of 30% of parking spots went unused. Council President 
Rosener asked how many cities were used in that study? Mr. Manvel replied that this study had been done in 
multiple cities, not just in Oregon, but also in King County, Washington. Council President Rosener stated that 
because the DLCD was talking about rulemaking, they could not use generic studies from around the country 
but needed to use studies done in the Portland Metro area. Councilor Scott asked if the study cited on page 11 
of the presentation was multifamily? Mr. Manvel replied that was correct. Council President Rosener offered to 
give Mr. Manvel a tour of several multifamily areas in Sherwood that demonstrated the need for more parking. 
Mr. Manvel replied that when he had reached out to the City to determine if any parking studies had been done, 
staff had reported that they were not aware of any such studies. He stated that he did plan to come to Sherwood 
in April to complete a site visit in order to better understand the conditions on the ground. Community 
Development Director Hajduk explained that staff and Council heard complaints about parking issues not just 
in Old Town, but all over, including residential and asked that Mr. Manvel look at multiple locations during his 
site visit. Mr. Manvel replied that he would reach out to staff about good times to schedule a site visit and which 
sites to visit. He explained that the third reason the DLCD cared about parking reform was because it was a 
trade-off with housing and sited a study done in Eugene where a parking requirement precluded two housing 
units. He referred to Oregon’s housing crisis and stated that it can “literally be a trade-off between housing 
people and housing cars.” Councilor Scott asked where the other two residents would park in the cited Eugene 
scenario? Mr. Manvel replied that they would either park on-street or they would be a carless household and 
commented that about 1/6 of all households were carless according to ACS data. Several council members 

6



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 4 of 16 
 

stated they disagreed with that figure for Sherwood. Council President Rosener stated that Sherwood’s carless 
percentage was around 1.2%. Mr. Manvel replied that that was more current data than he had, and that the 
data found that 25% of Sherwood’s households had 3+ cars, 50% had 2 cars, and 25% had 0-1 car. Council 
President Rosener commented the Sherwood did not have the jobs or a transit system to support that many 
people without cars and offered to send Mr. Manvel the data. Mr. Manvel provided an overview of the DLCD’s 
draft rules and stated that the first rule implemented best practices from around Oregon for parking code details. 
The second rule allowed cities to choose a parking reform approach of: repeal parking mandates, reduce 
parking mandates for certain types of development in key areas and adopt fair parking policies, or further reduce 
parking mandates for types of development and in more areas. The third rule was that communities over 25,000 
in population needed to do more parking management. Council President Rosener referred to the idea that if 
people wanted a car, they needed to pay for the parking and asked if that was an equitable solution considering 
transportation costs were the second largest cost for low-income families and Sherwood did not have functional 
mass transit. Mr. Manvel explained that people were already paying for parking via the costs of goods or in 
getting paid less because their employer is taking the cost of parking, and that the cost of parking was the same, 
but it was a matter of who was bearing that cost. He continued that low-income people were already paying for 
parking whether or not they were paying for it separately. Council President Rosener asked if Mr. Manvel was 
suggesting that the owner of an apartment building would lower their rental rates in a market environment 
because they were charging for parking? Mr. Manvel replied that that had been the experience in places that 
had unbundled parking throughout the country. He referred to an example in Minneapolis where apartment 
buildings without provided parking paid $200 less in rent and commented that individual owners and markets 
would vary. Councilor Young asked if there were any examples from Oregon for rent reductions due to 
unbundled parking? Mr. Manvel replied that unbundling usually happens in larger cities and currently a unit 
without parking is cheaper than a unit with parking in various areas. Councilor Scott commented that there were 
various different reasons why units differed in price such as location, amenities, access to schools and parks, 
and asked if all of those things were factored into that study? Mr. Manvel replied that the rent for a unit in a 
building where you did not pay for parking was cheaper than when a parking space was included in the rent. 
Council President Rosener clarified that a building owner would charge market rate for the apartment and then 
charge more for parking if they were allowed to do so. He asked if there were studies that showed that rents 
went down when parking was unbundled? Mr. Manvel replied that the rule required fair market value of the 
parking spot and that he believed that the market worked. Council President Rosener commented that he also 
believed the market worked, but much of the development in Sherwood was being done by very large corporate 
developers that had investors, so their focus was not necessarily on the communities and that he was worried 
about trusting landlords and developers to do the right thing. Mr. Manvel continued his recap of the improved 
parking management rules and stated that there would be no mandated parking within a 1/2 mile of frequent 
transit (Line 94), mandates would be capped at one space per multifamily unit, there would be no mandates for 
units under 750 square feet units/single-room occupancy, and that there would be no mandates for affordable 
housing, shelters, facilities for people with disabilities, or childcare providers. He clarified that no parking 
mandates did not mean no parking provided and reported that there was data that showed that markets would 
provide parking even if there were no mandates. Council President Rosener referred to a recent example in 
Sherwood of a developer wanting to build an apartment complex that was not permitted in the original PUD and 
then wanting to do a density swap with someone else so that they did not have to provide as much parking. He 
explained that the problem was that that parking lot was already full the majority of the time and that allowing 
cities flexibility to add their own checks and balances would help prevent loophole situations from occurring. Mr. 
Manvel commented that the need to manage parking well was something that was not often discussed. He 
explained that it was the government’s responsibility to think about how on-street parking is managed and if on-
street parking was managed well, the people who provided the needed off-street parking will be able to sell and 
rent their units compared to those who do not. Mr. Manvel reported that in some places when parking was 

7



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 5 of 16 
 

deregulated, it resulted in more housing units being built because people could afford to build and provided 
examples from several US cities on pages 17-20 of the presentation. He recapped that managing parking was 
a nuanced issue and was location specific and needed to be managed in certain ways. He addressed electric 
vehicle charging and explained that the goal was to install conduit as large development was occurring and 
explained that the conduit would be plastic tubes in the ground to preserve the ability for future charging stations 
to be located in that area. Mr. Holmstrom addressed transportation planning and explained that the DLCD’s 
transportation planning rules had existed for 30 years and local governments in Oregon had been doing 
coordinated land use and transportation planning for a long time. He explained that the DLCD did not want to 
do something new, but wanted to build on their successes of the past because they were aware that they had 
not been doing enough in terms of meeting their climate and equity goals. He recapped that the DLCD’s 
transportation planning rules focused on planning for pedestrian, bicycle, and public transportation networks in 
order to provide connected, safe, and complete networks. He stated that the DLCD’s transportation planning 
rules would prioritize climate friendly areas, neighborhoods with underserved populations, and access to key 
destinations. Council President Rosener asked if the DLCD had given much thought to how local governments 
would pay for the types of necessary upgrades to the roads? He explained that currently, a city received SDCs 
from the developers and then road improvements happened, or the developer gets credit back because they 
made the improvements themselves and commented that even with that process, there were still long sections 
of road that would need to be improved that a city would have to pay for. He explained that Sherwood did not 
have a mechanism to go out and put sidewalks in, make the area safe, and make the road wider and asked if 
there had been any thought about other funding mechanisms or other ways of approaching those issues? Mr. 
Holmstrom replied that SDCs were outside of the authority of the DLCD and explained that the DLCD rules 
were written to give local jurisdictions flexibility in how they figured out how to finance their projects and referred 
to Washington County’s MSTIP program. He continued that the DLCD’s rules talked about how local 
governments needed to go through the process of making decisions about what the highest priority was once 
they had those funds and how to ensure that it was connected to land use. Council President Rosener replied 
that Sherwood was currently doing those things, but with the annexation changes and the way things were 
getting “chunked,” the developers had more control over that pacing. Mr. Holmstrom replied that annexation 
law was outside of the DLCD’s purview and commented that the annexation laws also impacted the DLCD. Mr. 
Holmstrom explained that the rules encouraged cities to select projects based on a variety of prioritization 
factors such as climate and equity. He explained that the DLCD was requiring cities to listen to their underserved 
communities and to ensure that the underserved citizens of their community were a part of any decision making. 
He explained that the rules also allowed for the community to select a range of other prioritization decision 
factors around access and safety and commented that it was up to individual cities to make those decisions 
about how they prioritized it, but at the end of the day they needed to be working toward meeting the overall 
climate goals. He explained that the DLCD had tried to provide local governments with flexibility on how to reach 
those goals. Mr. Holmstrom reported that the DLCD would measure success in the transportation system by 
looking at a variety of factors, not just moving cars, and commented that other factors could include safety, 
access, and pedestrian and/or bicycle modes of travel. He stated that the DLCD was working with ODOT on 
devising ways local governments could measure success. Mr. Manvel provided an overview of the timeline for 
Sherwood on page 26 of the presentation and reported that parking mandates did not apply for development 
near frequent transit and for limited development types after December 31, 2022. He explained that if the task 
of choosing a parking reform approach for other areas by March 31, 2023 was too brief, a work plan could be 
proposed to the commission. He reported that there was a provision in the draft rules that stated that the regional 
government (Metro) could offer up a proposed approach that would meet the same goals. He explained if 
Sherwood did not feel that the DLCD’s rules were suitable, they could work with Metro to create a proposed 
alternative approach. Council President Rosener commented that Council would prefer to be able to offer up its 
own proposal instead of having to work with Metro. Mr. Manvel replied that option was not in the current draft 

8



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 6 of 16 
 

language. Council President Rosener asked what the process was to try to include it in the draft language? Mr. 
Manvel provided an overview of the DLCD rule making schedule and reported that the first public hearing would 
be held March 31-April 1, the adoption hearing would be held May 19-20, and there was an approximate 
effective date of June 22nd. He reported that those interested could submit written testimony to the commission 
via their website and stated that based on the concerns from both Council and staff, he would perform a site 
visit in order to determine if the draft plans needed to be adjusted as appropriate. He explained there had been 
travel restrictions in place due to the pandemic, but he was now able to travel to different locations in order to 
understand the sites on the ground. Community Development Director Hajduk asked if after performing the 
various site visits throughout the state, did they envision a scenario in which their rule making proposal would 
have multiple layers depending on location and makeup of communities in terms of the car to housing ratio? 
Mr. Manvel replied that he was open to ideas and explained that the DLCD was not trying to apply what may 
work in Portland to Sherwood. He explained that there was nuances to the rules that were based on transit 
frequency and some adjustments based on population and commented that they were happy to hear ideas for 
nuances from others. Councilor Scott commented that access to transit opportunities had to be a factor that 
was considered in the variability of the rules, and should include the consideration of if bus lines did not go to 
many locations. Mr. Manvel replied that the DLCD had striven to think about “the people who aren’t in the room” 
and explained that traditionally, land use planning decisions had been made with relatively affluent people who 
own more cars than the average in mind. Councilor Young commented that she appreciated that Mr. Manvel 
had explained that they were not trying to apply what worked in Portland to Sherwood because the recent rule 
making around housing and transportation had felt very one-size-fits-all.  

 
5. ADJOURNED: 
 

Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 7:04 pm. 
 

REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:15 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Kim Young, 

Sean Garland, and Renee Brouse. 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Keith D. Campbell, City Attorney Josh Soper, Finance Director David 

Bodway, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, IT Director Brad Crawford, Community Services Director 
Kristen Switzer, Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Ty Hanlon, Planning Manager 
Erika Palmer, City Engineer Bob Galati, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: Curt Vanderzanden Project Manager with KPFF, Craig Totten Lead Bridge Engineer 
with KPFF, Wes Shoger Landscape Architect with Green Works, and John Breshears with Architectural 
Applications. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR YOUNG TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR 
BROUSE. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

9



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 7 of 16 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A. Approval of March 1, 2022 City Council Meeting Minutes  
B. Resolution 2022-016, Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase a Truck Mounted Sewer and Catch 

Basin Cleaner 
C. Resolution 2022-017, Authorizing City Manager to enter into a contract with North Sky 

Communications, LLC for the construction of a portion of the Fiber to the Home Project for 
Sherwood Broadband 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BROUSE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. SECONDED BY 
COUNCILOR SCOTT. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

 
Jim Rose with the Sherwood School District came forward and spoke on the current pedestrian bridge design. 
He recapped that as the new high school was being designed, the community provided feedback that the new 
high school and site was to be a gateway to Sherwood West and that having an appropriate visual identity that 
fit Sherwood was important. He stated that the view from Highway 99W was important and that the current 
proposed alignment, the sightlines from the highway would be affected. He stated that the school district would 
like the twin girder option used to minimize the amount of mass and height of the bridge, which would lessen 
the amount the bridge that would obstruct the view of the new high school. 
 
The City Recorder read aloud the comments submitted by Mary Novelli and stated that in 2019, her son and 
two friends were, “struck by an alleged speeding and drunk driver.” She stated that she was a strong proponent 
for the safety and protection of all pedestrians in Sherwood. She referred to the recent vehicular accident that 
killed two young pedestrians in February 2022 and stated that it, “should not have and must not happen again.” 
She thanked former City Manager Joe Gall for his help fixing the roundabouts, pedestrian crossings, and speed 
issues in Sherwood. She thanked the Traffic Safety Committee for their work thus far but commented that the 
committee needed to complete and continue their work. She stated that the Traffic Safety Committee projects 
of: installing proper street lighting, installing “slow speed zone” signs, installing flashing pedestrian lights and 
ground reflectors at all school zones, major traffic intersections, and blind spots on neighborhood roads, and 
lowering the permitted top speeds throughout the city. She commented that Sherwood and the state encourage 
people to walk, bike, and take public transportation to reduce traffic, but asked how doing so would be possible 
if Sherwood did not make it safe for pedestrians to walk everywhere? She stated that there was no reason why 
side roads within one mile of a school zone and neighborhoods that came off of a 45 mph highway should 
have anything above a maximum speed of 25 mph. She stated that speeds in roundabouts in those areas must 
be reduced to 15 mph and that “slow speed zone ahead” along with “proper and consistent traffic signage” was 
necessary for Sherwood and ODOT. She asked when the Traffic Safety Committee would resume their work 
and when their projects were projected to be completed? 

 
Mayor Mays asked that Ms. Novelli’s letter be forwarded to the Traffic Safety Committee.  
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7. PRESENTATIONS: 
10



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 8 of 16 
 

A. Sherwood Police Department Reaccreditation OAA Presentation  
 

Police Chief Ty Hanlon introduced Scott Hayes with the Executive Director of the Oregon Accreditation Alliance 
and stated that the Sherwood Police Department had earned their fourth certificate of law enforcement 
accreditation. Mr. Hayes recognized former Police Chief Jeff Groth for his time serving on the Oregon 
Accreditation Alliance board. Mr. Hayes stated that law enforcement was experiencing challenges with 
increased demands for police accountability and transparency and commented that accreditation was one step 
towards building community trust and legitimacy of the profession. He stated that accreditation was a 
monumental step for any agency and explained that the goals of accreditation were to support continued 
improvement of law enforcement services, to establish best practices through professional standards, to 
establish agency accountability and transparency, and to enhance management of overall operations. Mr. 
Hayes provided a history of the OAA and reported that the OAA provided accreditation services for 77 law 
enforcement and communication centers in Oregon and Alaska. He explained that there were 105 law 
enforcement standards that an agency must adhere to and show proof of compliance with, and were based on 
federal, national, and Oregon law best practices. He recognized Administrative Assistant Angie Hass for 
serving as the agency’s accreditation manager.  

Mayor Mays thanked Mr. Hayes for his presentation and stated that the City was proud of Chief Hanlon, former 
Police Chief Groth, and the entire Sherwood Police Department. He stated that maintaining the Sherwood 
Police Department’s accreditation and continuing to have the highest standards for the department was an 
ongoing City Council goal. Chief Hanlon stated that he looked forward to continuing to work with the OAA and 
gave his thanks to Angie Hass for her work ensuring that the Sherwood Police Department stayed on track to 
meet those standards. Mayor Mays asked Mr. Hayes how many city police departments had achieved 
accreditation in Oregon? Mr. Hayes replied that eight communication centers had received their accreditation 
of the 77 centers that they served. He commented that the Oregon legislature had recently passed legislation 
that required accreditation for agencies with 35 officers or more. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

B. Pedestrian Bridge Update 
 
City Engineer Bob Galati reported that this presentation was a follow-up from a previous work session that had 
occurred prior to an open house for the project. He reported that this presentation would cover the data that 
was gathered from the open house as well as a design update. Curt Vanderzanden, Project Manager with 
KPFF, presented the “Sherwood Hwy 99W Pedestrian Bridge Project” presentation (see record, Exhibit C) and 
stated that they hoped to get further direction from Council prior to the next open house. He provided an 
overview of the online open house survey results and reported that 174 people participated and 74% said they 
would use the bridge as a pedestrian and 47% said they would use it as a bicyclist. He reported that 63% of 
the respondents lived on the south side of 99W in Sherwood, 15% lived on the north side of 99W, and 12% 
lived downtown. He reported that 56% of respondents “Like Very Much/Like” the Tall Arch option, 58% “Like 
Very Much/Like” the Bowstring Truss option, and 48% “Like Very Much/Like” the Twin Girder with Feature 
Railing option. He reported that 47% of respondents “Dislike Very Much /Dislike” the DaVinci Truss option and 
53% “Dislike Very Much /Dislike” the Curved Triangular Section Truss. He stated that based on the survey 
results, the DaVinci Truss and Curved Triangular Section Truss options were removed from consideration. 
Councilor Young asked if it was possible to see what the bridges would actually look like in place before they 
decided on a style? Discussion occurred. Mr. Vanderzanden replied that they had not yet built a model to show 
what the bridge would look like in place, but that would be a part of the process shortly. He reported that 81% 

11



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 9 of 16 
 

of the respondents felt that it was very important or somewhat important that the bridge feel like a gateway to 
the community.  

 
He addressed Alignment Option A1 and explained that this was the same option as in the previous work 
session except that they had shifted the bridge to be centered over the roundabout. He explained that in order 
to do this option, a pier would need to be installed in the center of the roundabout. He stated that Alignment 
Option A1 would require additional utility relocation work due to the installation of the pier, which would come 
with added costs. Community Development Director Hajduk asked Mr. Vanderzanden to speak on the nuances 
around being able to place the bridge above the roundabout. Mr. Vanderzanden explained that there was an 
existing sanitary sewer line at the location, but they had felt that they would be able to accommodate the pipe 
without doing damage. He spoke about the hinge point on the east side of the highway and explained that it 
was based on how far they needed to take the bridge in order to meet the required 4.5% slope for the pathway. 
Ms. Hajduk added that the limitations of the site made for few feasible alignment options for the bridge. Mr. 
Vanderzanden recapped that Council had asked that the hinge point on the east side be flared out to help 
prevent bottlenecking and stated that staff had done so. He added that staff had also looked into providing a 
connection from the hinge point down to the sidewalk on 99W to provide a direct connection to the trail system 
and had built that into all alignment options. A KPFF consultant referred to an earlier comment about the 
importance of the bridge not looking like an afterthought and commented that centering the bridge over the 
roundabout was imperative to ensuring the bridge did not look like an afterthought. Councilor Garland asked if 
there were any visibility concerns for the roundabout with a pier in the middle of it? Mr. Vanderzanden replied 
that the sight triangles for roundabouts were different than typical intersections and commented that the pier 
would not cause a sight obstruction for drivers using the roundabout. A councilor asked what the projected 
dimensions of the pier would be? KPFF structural engineer replied that they were not sure yet and commented 
that the pier may not be round. The councilor asked for an estimate of the probable general size. The structural 
engineer replied that the order of magnitude was in the order of 2.5-3 feet. City Engineer Galati explained that 
the roundabout was designed to be a straight through roundabout and therefore it was not “mounded up” and 
provided a complete line of sight. He added that the trees that were supposed to be planted in the roundabout 
had been removed and therefore adding a pier to the middle of the roundabout should not impact the sight 
distance. Wes Shoger addressed the Alignment A1 – East Landing option and reported that the feedback 
Council had provided at the previous work session of adding stairs and a wider maneuvering area had been 
added into the plans. He explained that the east landing was the project’s most difficult landing due to the 
location of the YMCA building and stated that all of the options played towards the survey results for the 
preferred bridge types of arches or trusses. He provided an overview of Alignment A1 – East Landing option 
and explained that they had provided a walkway with a 5% slope, which was ADA accessible. Council President 
Rosener clarified that there were no current plans to expand the YMCA facility, but the City wanted to be 
mindful of possible future expansion of the facility when constructing the pedestrian bridge. Mr. Vanderzanden 
referred to previous comments from Council regarding the massing around the YMCA and explained that Mr. 
Shoger had reduced the massing and commented that a structured walkway was more likely than doing a 
mounting to keep the area as light as possible. Mr. Shoger addressed Alignment A1 – West Landing option 
and explained Councils request for stairs down to Kruger had been added to the plans. Mr. Breshears 
addressed Alignment A1 – Option 1 and recapped that he had taken the preferred range of structural types 
and put them into a more realistic model. He explained that the Tall Arch type was the most efficient bridge 
option which meant that it took the least weight of steel to span the 200 feet across the highway and was 
reflected in the projected costs. He addressed the Twin Girder portion of Alignment A1 – Option 1 and 
explained that the railings were required to be higher when they went over roads to serve as anti-throw/anti-
climb barriers and commented that the railings did not have to be as high when they did not go over a roadway, 
so the Twin Girder portion of the bridge could have two different railing heights. He addressed Alignment A1 – 

12



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 10 of 16 
 

Option 2 and explained that it was similar to Alignment A1 – Option 1 but used a Bowstring Truss instead of a 
Tall Arch to span the highway. He explained that the Bowstring Truss used heavier diagonal members, which 
increased the cost compared to the Tall Arch. He addressed Alignment A1 – Option 3 and explained that it 
was similar to Alignment A1 – Option 1 and Option 2 but used Twin Girders for the main span. He stated that 
Alignment A1 – Option 3 required more height, which would impact the ramp length needed to get up the bridge 
and explained that Alignment A1 – Option 3 was not very viable with Alignment Option A2. He stated that 
Alignment A1 – Option 3 was the simplest and most straightforward bridge structure and strongly 
recommended emphasizing the art component of the bridge by engaging with the artists early in the process 
if this option was chosen. Councilor Scott commented that he felt that the Tall Arch or the Bow String option 
would not create sightline problems for the high school as the arch would span the highway portion of the 
bridge and the high school was in another direction off to the side, and asked if he was incorrect? Mr. 
Vanderzanden replied that he did not believe Councilor Scott was incorrect, but he was not positive and would 
need to review the plans. A KPFF consultant added that they would try to create some visuals to help and 
commented that generally speaking, Councilor Scott was correct. Councilor Brouse asked which option Jim 
Rose from the school district had wanted? Mr. Rose replied that what Councilor Scott said was correct and, 
“for us, having the Twin Girder from 99 to over is kind of the most important factor…the bridge, in general, is 
going to decrease your vision from driving on 99…the arch is probably not the biggest issue directly over 99, 
it’s kind of the rest of the structure that we’re interested in minimizing.” Mr. Vanderzanden addressed Alignment 
Option A2 and explained that it was a midpoint between Alternative B and Alternative A from the previous work 
session. He explained that Alignment Option A2 was created to take advantage of the stormwater facility south 
of the roundabout to allow for additional piers and shorter spans. He reported that Alignment Option A2 did not 
provide enough length to reach the necessary height requirements to accommodate a Twin Girder bridge type. 
Community Development Director Hajduk clarified that KPFF had initially created this option to avoid the 
utilities in the middle of the roundabout. Mr. Vanderzanden added that Alignment Option A2 was also created 
as a cost savings option since they could do better spacing on the supports as well as provide an opportunity 
to do a more “signature structure type.” Mr. Shoger addressed Alignment Option A2 – East Landing – Option 
1 and explained that the alignment came a bit closer to the intersection but did not butt up to it. He stated that 
this option required more detailed planning to determine how to do the landing, and they had created two 
options. Option 1 was a ramp system that allowed you to pick up grading and Option 2 was a walkway with 
less than 5% slope. He stated that Alignment Option A2 – East Landing – Option 1 was similar to the A1 – 
East Landing option except it had a ramp system with landings. He reported that Alignment Option A2 – East 
Landing – Option 1 would also provide stairs. Mayor Mays asked what the ramp grade would be? Mr. Shoger 
replied that it would be a series of ramps with 7.5% grade for 30 feet, then a 2% landing of 5 feet, and then 
another ramp, etc. Discussion occurred. Mr. Shoger commented that he felt that a walkway was the more 
preferable option compared to the ramp system, but it was not a “deal breaker.” Mr. Vanderzanden commented 
that one of the downsides of a ramp system is the suitability for biking. He addressed Alignment Option A2 – 
East Landing – Option 2 and explained that this option aimed to provide enough ramp in order to be able to 
maintain a 4.5% walkway. Mr. Shoger interjected and explained that this option required a flatter walkway, so 
they had to make it longer and commented that this wrap around option was a safe option since it impeded 
people from traveling at high speeds down onto Sunset Boulevard. Mayor Mays commented he preferred this 
option. Mr. Shoger added that Alignment Option A2 – East Landing – Option 2 was slightly taller than the ramp 
system. Council President Rosener asked if the wrap around design would possibly discourage people from 
using it since it was not a direct route to the bridge? Mr. Vanderzanden replied that there would also be stairs 
to allow for more direct access to and from the bridge if people wanted. Council President Rosener added that 
he believed the City planned to close the crosswalk that went across Highway 99W when the bridge had been 
constructed. City Engineer Galati reminded that Highway 99W was a state highway and the crosswalk was a 
state facility and the state was the one to mandate what happened to the sidewalk regardless of if the 

13



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 11 of 16 
 

pedestrian bridge was built or not. He added that the state was unlikely to allow the City to close the sidewalk, 
but the City would still ask the state to close the sidewalk if it was Council’s wish. Mr. Shoger addressed 
Alignment Option A2 – West Landing and explained that the landing was similar to the Alignment A1 – West 
Landing option. Mayor Mays asked if the switchback to go to Kruger was mostly a ramp with some stairs added 
at the end? Mr. Shoger replied that the red line shown on page 16 was a walkway that led up to stairs and 
commented that the location of the stairs could be more spread out. Mr. Breshears addressed Alignment A2 – 
Option 1 and explained that this alignment allowed them to take advantage of the stormwater facility in order 
to place more columns and therefore have shorter spans. He stated that this would result in a bridge with six 
spans that alternated going over roadways and greenspace. He stated that Alignment A2 – Option 1 took 
advantage of the structural efficiency of the Tall Arch and alternate right-side-up, right-side-down orientations 
of the arch over the six spans. He commented that all of the Tall Arch pieces could be pre-manufactured and 
was cost competitive. He stated that Alignment A2 – Option 2 was similar in design but pushed the main bridge 
span closer to the intersection and used Bowstring Trusses instead of Tall Arches. Discussion occurred. Mr. 
Shoger commented that both Alignment A2 options provided for a more visually interesting experience for 
bridge-users and stated that Alignment A2 was a unique design, and they had not been able find a similarly 
designed bridge in the US. Councilor Young commented Alignment A2 did not appeal to her. Discussion 
occurred. Mayor Mays commented he liked Alignment A2. Council asked that KPFF create a model of what 
Alignment A2 would look like that included the high school. Mr. Vanderzanden replied that they would produce 
something to capture that view. Mr. Breshears addressed Alignment A2 – Option 3 and explained that it was 
similar to the other two options but instead used a Tall Arch for the main span and then Twin Girders for the 
approach spans. He explained that the use of Twin Girders for the approach spans would allow for a continuous 
smooth curve compared to Options 1 and 2. A councilor asked if those could be pre-fabricated as well? Mr. 
Breshears replied that was an option. Mr. Vanderzanden provided an overview of the available bridge types 
that could be pre-manufactured. A KPFF consultant explained that they had reached out to a few bridge 
manufacturing companies for their pricing and explained that any of the noted bridge types would be pre-
fabricated and could be lifted into place. Mayor Mays commented that it was important that the bridge be built 
elsewhere and then lifted into place. Council President Rosener asked if the survey had questions regarding 
bridge material preferences? Mr. Vanderzanden replied that the first survey did not have those types of 
questions, but they could be added to the second survey that would be put out shortly. City Engineer Galati 
commented that the maintenance costs for the lifespan of the bridge should also be calculated and included 
when discussing bridge material choices. Mayor Mays stated he was in favor of steel. Mr. Vanderzanden 
provided an overview of the Alternatives for Alignments A1 and A2 on page 21 of the presentation and 
explained that all of the presented options effectively addressed the safety concerns for pedestrians and 
bicyclists and all the options were ADA compliant. He added that Alignment Option A2 – East Landing – Option 
1, may require additional work to meet ADA standards. He addressed the desirability of Alignments A1 and A2 
and stated Alignment A1 included a few angles and was slightly longer than A2. Alignment A2 provided the 
most direct route, but only slightly less length than A1. He addressed the utility impacts of Alignments A1 and 
A2 and stated that both alignments would necessitate overhead utility adjustments, and A1 would also likely 
require water and gas relocations. He addressed the environmental impacts of Alignments A1 and A2 and 
stated that there were no anticipated wetland or significant recourse impacts for either alignment, but A2 would 
have some impact on the existing stormwater facility. Mr. Totten addressed the Alternatives for Alignments A1 
and A2 table regarding bridge types on page 22 of the presentation and reported that the alignment lengths 
were very similar with A1 being 20 feet longer. He referred to the debate of “gateway versus signature” bridges 
and commented that he felt that all the bridge types had the potential to be a gateway structure, with the Twin 
Girder option being the plainest and commented the Twin Girder’s visual impact could be improved with art. 
He spoke on signature bridges and commented that Tall Arch bridges were very common because they were 
very efficient and that he felt that a Tall Arch bridge could still be a signature bridge and referred to Alignment 

14



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 12 of 16 
 

A2 – Options 1 and 2 as an efficient bridge type that was also a signature bridge because of its “undulating” 
design and would be uniquely identifiable to Sherwood. He addressed the ROM construction costs and 
commented that the prices for each bridge type was fairly similarly priced at $13-15 million. He explained that 
their cost estimates included a 40% contingency rate due to the uncertainty around construction costs and 
commented he could see the final number for the bridge being +/- 30% of the forecasted cost. He reported that 
the bridge was currently at 5-10% design and once it was at 30%, they would be able to calculate a more 
accurate contingency. Mr. Vanderzanden recapped the next steps and reported that a second virtual open 
house would be held March 23rd-April 1st, a preferred alternative would be selected on April 11th, and a complete 
30% design/cost estimating would be complete by June 20th. 

 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk voiced that staff hoped to hear specifics as to what Council 
wanted included in the open house survey that would help to inform Council when picking the preferred 
alternative and ultimate design. Councilor Scott asked if Council wished to narrow down the configuration 
options before putting out the survey? Mayor Mays asked if Councilor Scott wished to eliminate one or two 
choices? Councilor Scott replied that he preferred to get rid of one or two. Mr. Vanderzanden commented that 
they would need two to three alternatives in order to complete a more detailed analysis so eventually the 
options needed to be narrowed down and commented that he recommended putting all six options in the 
second survey. Councilor Scott spoke on the landing options and stated he liked option A1 because it was a 
walkway and it did not “come aggressively around the corner” like in A2. Within A2 he liked the walkway, but 
he did not like the idea of having an 8% slope. He spoke on bridge types and stated he did not like the Twin 
Girder option for both the main span and the approaches because from a massing standpoint, it was a lot of 
length with no height perspective on it, and he would get rid of that option. He stated he liked the undulating 
design option. Council President Rosener stated he also liked the undulating design option and commented it 
would be hard for him to rule out a design option until he had seen the design videos. Mr. Vanderzanden 
replied that he would look into how to accomplish that without having to complete a bunch of digital modeling. 
Councilor Garland commented that he agreed that the Twin Girder option did look plain, but if the City worked 
with the Cultural Arts Commission, the design could be elevated. He stated that the view of the high school 
from the bridge was also important and should be considered and commented that the east side landing option 
that curved around provided a nice view of the school. He stated that he also liked the undulating design option 
and commented he wanted a signature bridge for Sherwood, not something that was plain. Councilor Young 
asked if it was possible to add example pictures of art on other Twin Girder bridges in the survey to help people 
visualize what it could look like? Discussion occurred. Councilor Young stated that the Twin Girder option was 
her least favorite. Councilor Brouse stated she liked A2, but not A2’s approaches and she preferred A1’s 
approaches. She stated she liked the “third one” and agreed with Councilor Young about the need to show 
examples of Twin Girder art in the survey. Mr. Vanderzanden replied that example pictures of Twin Girder art 
would be added to the survey. Councilor Scott asked Councilor Brouse if Alignment A2 – Option 3 was the 
“third one” she liked? Councilor Brouse replied that was correct. Councilor Scott commented that Alignment 
A2 – Option 3 would also provide a nice view of the high school from the bridge. Mayor Mays stated he was 
not interested in a Twin Girder bridge for both the span and the approaches. He stated the second alignment 
with the curve was great and he liked that it avoided utilities in the roundabout. He stated the undulating design 
had a “wow factor” and commented he liked “wow and efficiency.” Ms. Hajduk indicated that she was not 
hearing a desire from Council to remove the Twin Girder option. Councilor Scott and Mayor Mays stated they 
would take it out. Councilor Brouse stated she would get rid of A1 in its entirety. City Engineer Galati 
commented it would save a lot of time if Council wanted to take the options down to one alignment and 
explained the state’s permitting process. Council President Rosener asked school district representative Jim 
Rose for his thoughts on what alignment option the school district would prefer? Mr. Rose replied that A2 would 
be less impactful to the building and commented that KPFF had done a lot of work on the new high school and 

15



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 13 of 16 
 

offered any of the available computer data to assist with the 3D visualization. Mayor Mays commented with 
the added savings, he agreed with Councilor Brouse. Councilor Scott stated he would get rid of Alignment A1 
– Option 3. Discussion occurred. Council agreed to remove Alignment A1 – Option 3. Mayor Mays asked if 
there was value in narrowing down the alignment options to one instead of two? Ms. Hajduk replied that the 
difference between A1 and A2 was that A2 had more of a visual impact on the YMCA. Mr. Vanderzanden 
recapped that he had heard the Council was not interested in a ramp system and wished to do a wraparound 
instead. Councilor Scott asked if a design that used both Tall Arches and Bowstring Arches to do the undulating 
design was an option? Discussion occurred. A KPFF consultant replied that they could play with aspect ratios 
of both types as they had different limitations and determine if the undulating design using both types was an 
option. Councilor Scott stated he was fine getting rid of A1. Council President Rosener agreed with Councilor 
Scott. Councilor Garland commented he was in favor of A2 and he was hesitant to cut the choices down but 
commented he was fine with getting rid of A1. Mr. Galati recapped the discussion and stated they would get 
rid of Alignment A1 and go with Alignment A2 for the open house and they would present different bridge 
options to get public input on the survey. Ms. Hajduk commented that getting rid of that alignment would help 
staff focus in on what that would look like. Mayor Mays asked if adding lights to the bridge was an option? Mr. 
Vanderzanden replied that was possible. Discussion occurred. Councilor Scott asked if all landing options by 
the YMCA had been explored? Mr. Vanderzanden replied that the YMCA landing was constrained by vertical 
constraints, rights-of-way constraints, and the YMCA facility and it was a really tight area to design for. 
Councilor Scott commented that instead of curving around the building, they could do a switchback instead. 
Mr. Vanderzanden replied that the issue with a switchback was that it would drive the landing back towards 
what was shown in Alternative B from the last work session. Councilor Garland thanked KPFF for adding 
Council’s request for stairs and a flaring out the hinge point on the east side to encourage pedestrians to use 
the bridge instead of the crosswalk. Councilor Young asked City Engineer Galati when the City should begin 
to have conversations with the state about closing down the crossing? Mr. Galati replied that it should start as 
soon as possible. Council President Rosener asked if pedestrian traffic changed, would it change the timing of 
the lights? Mr. Galati replied that there may be some impact there because it was a high volume intersection. 
Discussion regarding the impact of recent construction on traffic volumes occurred. Mr. Galati explained that 
getting the crosswalks closed was a two pronged process. The first prong was to convince the technical staff 
at ODOT that it was acceptable to close the crosswalk and was something City staff could do. The second 
prong was the political, upper management directive policy side, and was something that would require work 
from Council. He commented that deciding on an alignment option would help speed the process along.  

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. The City Recorder read the public hearing statement. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
A. Ordinance 2022-002, Amending multiple sections of the Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code relating to Marijuana Uses (Second Hearing) 
 
Planning Manager Erika Palmer recapped that the first hearing on the proposed ordinance took place on March 
1st and explained the ordinance consisted of general housekeeping amendments that had been recommended 
by the Planning Commission. She reported that no public comments had been submitted since the first hearing. 
Mayor Mays asked for public comment on the proposed ordinance. Hearing none, Mayor Mays closed the 
public hearing and asked for discussion or questions from Council.  

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BROUSE TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2022-002 
AMENDING MULTIPLE SECTIONS OF THE SHERWOOD ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

16



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 14 of 16 
 

CODE RELATING TO MARIJUANA USES. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR SCOTT. MOTION PASSED 6:0. 
ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item and the City Recorder read the public hearing statement. 

 
B. Ordinance 2022-003 Approving annexation of approximately 20.0 acres to the City of Sherwood 

Clean Water Services within the Tonquin Employment Area, comprised of five tax lots and an 
adjacent unnamed right-of-way (First Hearing)  

 
Mayor Mays asked the councilors to disclose any ex parte contact, bias, or conflicts of interest. Councilor 
Brouse stated that she was the Sherwood Chamber of Commerce Executive Director. The City Recorder asked 
if any audience member wished to challenge. None were received. Senior Planner Joy Chang presented the 
“Sherwood Commerce Center – Phase II Annexation Case File: LU 2021-024 AN” PowerPoint presentation 
(see record, Exhibit D) and reported that the applicant was seeking approval from the City to annex 
approximately 20 acres of land into the City of Sherwood and Clean Water Services boundaries. She reported 
that the applicant was requesting the annexation by utilizing the procedures outlined in SB 1573 or ORS 
222.127, which did not require a vote by the City electorate but did require a petition signed by all affected 
property owners and met certain approval criteria. She stated that this was a Type V application and the City 
Council was the hearing authority. She reported that notice of the application was routed to affected agencies 
on February 22, 2022 and agency comments had been incorporated into the findings and exhibits of the staff 
report. She recapped that staff had identified a typographical error in Exhibit 1 to the Staff Report on page 70 
of the Council packet. She stated that the sending agency notices date of July 9, 2019 should have been 
February 22, 2022 instead and the error did not change any of staff’s findings. Ms. Chang reported that public 
notice of the application had been provided in accordance with local, regional, and state requirements, 
including mailed notice to property owners within 1,000 feet of the site. She reported that as of this evening, 
no written public comments were received on the application. She provided an overview of the site on page 4 
of the presentation and explained that the subject property was comprised of five tax lots and was located 
southeast of SW Oregon Street and was adjacent to an unnamed roadway that connected to SW Tonquin 
Road to the west and the properties were within the Tonquin Employment Area. Senior Planner Chang reported 
that the project site was 19.76 acres of private property with 0.24 acres of right-of-way dedication, for a total of 
20.0 acres. She outlined the state, regional, and local approval criteria on pages 6-9 of the presentation and 
reported that the site was located within the UGB and was contiguous to the City boundary line. Community 
Development Director Julia Hajduk clarified that the map shown on page 7 was incorrect, but the previous 
maps were correct. Ms. Chang reported that staff had reviewed the urban services and had determined that it 
was feasible to service the site and the site was within the Washington County ESPD, and once annexed the 
site would be withdrawn from the County’s ESPD and Sherwood Police would service the site. She stated that 
the proposal was consistent with Urban Service, CWS, and TVF&R agreements and would also promote 
orderly facilities, affect urban services, and avoid duplication of services. She provided an overview of the local 
Comprehensive Plan and Tonquin Employment Area Plan approval criteria and reported that all of the Growth 
Management and Tonquin Employment Area criteria had been met for annexation. She stated that upon 
annexation into the City boundary, the Employment Industrial (EI) zoning designation would be applied. Ms. 
Chang stated that staff recommended the approval of the proposed ordinance and outlined the Council 
alternatives as: adopt the ordinance with a unanimous vote during the first public hearing, hold the first public 
hearing at this meeting and issue a decision after the second reading on April 5th, or hold the first public hearing 
on the ordinance and direct staff to revise findings that denied the annexation request. Mayor Mays asked for 
public comment on the proposed ordinance.  

 

17



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 15 of 16 
 

Applicant representative Colby Anderson with VLMK addressed Council and stated that he and his team was 
very excited to work with the City of Sherwood. He stated that this was Phase II of the Sherwood Commerce 
Center Property, with the Planning Commission approving Phase I in February 2022. He stated that the 
development would reinforce Phase I and commented he and the applicant were excited to help attract “great, 
high-paying jobs” in Sherwood. He asked that Council consider voting on the proposed ordinance at this 
meeting. Mayor Mays asked if Council had any questions for the applicant. Hearing none, Mayor Mays closed 
the public hearing portion of the meeting and asked for discussion or questions from Council for staff. Mayor 
Mays commented that it was great to have another annexation into the TEA. He asked if Council wished to 
vote on the ordinance at this meeting? Councilor Scott replied that he was comfortable voting on the ordinance 
at this meeting because the proposal met all of the necessary requirements. Councilor Young commented she 
was comfortable voting on the ordinance at this meeting for the same reasons as Councilor Scott. 

 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BROUSE TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2022-003 
APPROVING ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 20.0 ACRES TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD CLEAN 
WATER SERVICES WITHIN THE TONQUIN EMPLOYMENT AREA, COMPRISED OF FIVE TAX LOTS AND 
AN ADJACENT UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR YOUNG. MOTION PASSED 
6:0. ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 
9. CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 
City Manager Campbell asked Finance Director Bodway to report on an award the city recently received. 
Finance Director Bodway reported that the City had received the Distinguished Budget Award from the GFOA 
(Government Finance Officers Association) for its most recent past budget. He stated that this was not the first 
time Sherwood had received the award and he would continue to do the necessary work to be awarded again 
in the future.  
 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

Councilor Scott thanked Council President Rosener for attending the Planning Commission meeting last week 
in his place.  
 
Councilor Garland commented it was great to be back and great to see everyone again. 
 
Councilor Brouse reported that the Library Advisory Board would meet on March 16th and the Senior Advisory 
Board met last week where they continued their work on making Sherwood an age friendly city. She reported 
that the Senior Center needed volunteers to assist with providing meals and encouraged people to volunteer.  
 
Councilor Young reported that CDBG member Jennie Proctor would be retiring after many years with the 
Community Development department at Washington County. She reported that the CDBG had begun the 
process to determine how to find a replacement for Ms. Proctor. She reported that the Police Advisory Board 
would meet on March 17th and commented that the Traffic Safety Committee met monthly and the Police 
Advisory Board received monthly updates from the board.  
 

18



DRAFT 
 

City Council Minutes  
March 15, 2022 
Page 16 of 16 
 

Council President Rosener reported he attended the Small City Consortium meeting where they heard a 
legislative update. He reported he attended the Planning Commission meeting where they reviewed a PUD 
application to build apartments and discussed housing choices.  
 
Mayor Mays reported he attended the WCCC, LOC, and Metro Mayors meetings.  
 

11. ADJOURN: 
 

Mayor Mays adjourned the regular session at 9:10 pm.  
 
 

Attest: 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   Keith Mays, Mayor 

 

 

 

19



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
March 28, 2022 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

Pursuant to House Bill 4212 (2020), this meeting will be conducted electronically and will be live streamed at 
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

March 28, 2022 
 

WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the work session to order at 5:05 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Kim Young, 

Sean Garland, and Renee Brouse. 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Keith D. Campbell, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, and 

City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 
 

4. TOPICS: 
 
A.  Interviews for Vacant Council Position 

 
Mayor Mays explained that the purpose of the work session was to allow Council to interview applicants for 
the vacant City Council seat. Council interviewed applicants Taylor Giles, Kierin Noreen, Kevin Owens, and 
Daniel Standke.  
 
Record Note: See email correspondence to the City Council (see record, Exhibit A). 

 
5. ADJOURNED: 
 

Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 6:43 pm. 
 
 
SPECIAL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 6:50 pm. 
 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Sean 

Garland, Renee Brouse, and Kim Young. 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Keith D. Campbell, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad 

Crawford, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 
 

20

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
March 28, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Vacant Council Position 
 
Mayor Mays explained that the purpose of this meeting was to appoint someone to fill the vacant Council 
seat. He reported Council had interviewed four applicants and he thanked the applicants Taylor Giles, Kierin 
Noreen, Kevin Owens, and Dan Standke for applying for the position and meeting with Council. Mayor Mays 
stated that filling a council seat was a 45-day process, which was initiated when the City declared the 
vacancy and asked City Attorney Josh Soper to explain the next steps in the process. Mr. Soper commented 
that a streamlined process for filling a Council vacancy was currently being worked on by staff. He explained 
that under the current Municipal Code, the current step in the process called for nominations from Council 
members to fill the vacancy. After a Council member nominated one of the candidates, Mr. Soper would ask 
if the nomination was seconded. If the candidate was both nominated and seconded, the candidate would 
then go on a list of candidates to be considered for that nomination and a vote would follow. He continued 
that if a nomination was not seconded, then that person would not be considered. When there were no 
further nominations, the list of candidates who had been nominated and seconded would be read back to 
Council. A roll call vote would follow in which each Council member would be asked which candidates from 
the list they were voting for. The City Recorder would keep a tally of the votes (see record, Exhibit B) and 
once the voting was complete, the City Recorder would read aloud the results. Mr. Soper explained that if 
one of the candidates received at least four votes, that would be the candidate who was appointed to the 
vacant Council seat. If there was no candidate with at least four votes, the voting process would be repeated 
with the top two candidates from the previous vote. Mr. Soper explained that in the result of a tie, the voting 
process would be repeated until someone was selected or a top two were chosen. Councilor Garland asked 
what would happen if Council were unable to come to a decision in the 45-day window? City Attorney Soper 
replied that there were no built-in consequences for failing to come to a decision in the 45-day window, but 
he could foresee an interested or affected party seeking a writ of mandamus from a court, in which the court 
would order the Council to fill that vacancy. Councilor Scott asked when the 45-days ended? Mr. Soper 
replied that April 15th was the end of the 45-day window. Mayor Mays asked if Council was comfortable 
starting the voting process at this meeting? Several Council members stated they were comfortable voting 
at this meeting. Councilor Scott suggested that Council hold the first round of nominations and voting and 
then deliberate on the results.  
 
City Attorney Soper asked for nominations. Councilor Young nominated Taylor Giles, Council President 
Rosener seconded the nomination. Councilor Brouse nominated Kierin Noreen. A second was not received. 
Councilor Garland nominated Dan Standke, Councilor Brouse seconded the nomination. With no further 
nominations, City Attorney Soper reported that Taylor Giles and Dan Standke were the top two nominations. 
Mayor Mays asked for discussion on the two nominees. Councilor Scott thanked both Kierin Noreen and 
Kevin Owens for applying and stated he thought both were very well spoken in their interviews and that he 
hoped to see both of them serve on a board or commission. Councilor Scott spoke on Taylor Giles and 
stated that Council was voting on a nine-month position and Mr. Giles was currently serving on the Planning 
Commission, a board that was most similar to Council in terms of time commitments and depth of role. He 
commented that he felt that Mr. Giles would be able to “hit the ground running” during the nine-month term. 
Councilor Young stated she agreed with Councilor Scott and commented that there were four great 
applicants. She commented that Mr. Giles was already serving on the Planning Commission, he had already 
run for Council previously, he had already had votes from the citizenry to be on Council, and that it seemed 
like he intended to run for Council again in the future. She stated that Mr. Standke also had a good interview 
and would bring a lot to the Council, but she felt that having someone who already had experience serving 

21



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
March 28, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
 

on a board or commission would help during their nine-month term. Councilor Brouse voiced that if Mr. Giles 
was selected, it would result in the Planning Commission losing a board member and needing to fill the 
vacancy. Whereas if Council selected someone who was not currently serving on a board or commission, 
there would be no vacancy created and that she felt that either candidate would do very well in the Council 
position. Councilor Garland stated he appreciated those who had applied and that both Mr. Giles and Mr. 
Standke would both bring a lot of experience and capacity for teamwork, which was important when serving 
on Council. He stated he was looking for someone to fit and understand the role and that both candidates 
had done their homework, knew what the role called for, and were ready to step-in. Council President 
Rosener stated that there were four great candidates and that he enjoyed speaking to all of them and that 
each of the candidates wanted to make the Sherwood community a better place. He stated he felt that any 
of the four candidates would do well in the Council role and that he liked both Mr. Giles and Mr. Standke. 
He stated they both gave good, nuanced answers to Council’s questions and that he felt both Mr. Giles and 
Mr. Standke would do well in the role. He referred to Mr. Giles’s serving on the Planning Commission and 
his previous run for City Council and stated Mr. Giles had done a lot of good work in the community which 
made him stand out as a candidate. Mayor Mays stated that Sherwood was blessed as a community to have 
four applicants and that both Mr. Giles and Mr. Standke would be good choices. He stated that they both 
had had good interviews and that he was pleased with either option. Mayor Mays stated that he had served 
on the Planning Commission prior to Council and he felt that the experience of doing so was invaluable. 
With no other discussion from Council, City Attorney Soper called for a vote.  
 
Those in favor of Taylor Giles: Councilor Scott, Councilor Young, Council President Rosener, and Mayor 
Mays. Those in favor of Dan Standke: Councilor Brouse and Councilor Garland. The City Recorder reported 
that there were four votes for Mr. Giles and two votes for Mr. Standke. City Attorney Soper stated that 
pursuant to the City Charter and the Municipal Code, Taylor Giles had received the votes of a majority of 
the remaining members of the City Council and was hereby declared to be appointed to fill the vacancy 
created by the resignation of Councilor Russell Griffin. He stated that Taylor Giles would be seated as a City 
Councilor upon taking the oath of office, which would occur on or before the April 5th regular City Council 
meeting. He stated that pursuant to the City Charter, the term of office for this appointment would expire 
when the person elected at the November 8, 2022 election took office in January 2023. Councilor Young 
asked that staff let the other candidates know which boards and commissions had vacancies. 

 
5. ADJOURN 
 

Mayor Mays adjourned the meeting at 7:08 pm.  
 

 

 

Attest: 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   Keith Mays, Mayor 

 

22



Resolution 2022-018, Staff Report 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: April 5, 2022 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Erika Palmer, Planning Manager  
Through: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director, Keith D. Campbell, City Manager, and                                       

Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2022-018, Authorizing an amendment to the existing Angelo Planning 

Group contract for the Sherwood West Re-look project  
 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign an amendment to the existing contract with 
Angelo Planning Group to increase the budget by $37,656 to complete the Sherwood West Re-look 
Project?    
 
Background: 
The Sherwood West Re-look Project is a high priority for the City. On January 19, 2021, the City Council 
approved Resolution 2021-007 to execute a contract with Angelo Planning Group to prepare an update to 
the Sherwood West Preliminary Concept Plan. The original contract amount was $136,000, of which 
$130,000 is funded through a Metro Community and Planning grant. The additional funding is necessary 
due to changes to the project schedule that has included preparing materials for a total of four extra 
meetings (two meetings with the Community Advisory Committee and two meetings with the Technical 
Advisory Committee during the fall and winter of 2021), additional GIS analysis in estimating buildable 
lands, and meetings with stakeholders through March and April, 2022.These additional efforts were 
identified through the course of the CAC meetings to help ensure that the information and outcomes of the 
project represented the community needs through scenario planning work. The contract amendment will 
provide additional contingency funding through the length of this project, if needed and authorized by the 
City.   
 
Financial Impacts: 
This contract amendment will increase the contract amount by $37,656 for a total contract amount not to 
exceed $173,656. The Planning Department budget has sufficient funds to cover this amendment. The 
Planning Department budgeted for additional Housing Choices work for FY 2021-2022, but staff has 
completed the work leaving room in the budget to cover this contract amendment.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2022-018, authorizing an amendment 
to the existing Angelo Planning Group contract for the Sherwood West Re-look Project.  
 
 

23



DRAFT 

Resolution 2022-018 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-018 

 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING ANGELO PLANNING GROUP CONTRACT 

FOR THE SHERWOOD WEST RE-LOOK PROJECT 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood and Angelo Planning Group are parties to a contract for the Sherwood 
West Re-Look project via Council Resolution 2021-007; and  
 
WHEREAS, unforeseen changes to the project schedule that has included additional committee meetings, 
GIS and land use scenario work, and meetings with partner agencies have resulted in increased costs; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, an increase to the budget by $37,656 provides additional planning services and also includes 
additional contingency funding as authorized by the City Manager through the length of the project;  and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to amend the City’s contract 
with Angelo Planning Group for planning services and contingency funding, which would be available for 
use only upon the authorization of the City;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract amendment in a form substantially 

similar to the attached Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this April 5, 2022. 
 
 
             
        Keith Mays, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 
 

24



CITY OF SHERWOOD, OREGON 
ANGELO PLANNING GROUP 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
SHERWOOD WEST RE-LOOK PROJECT 

CONTRACT ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

This addendum is made and entered into by and between the City of Sherwood (“CITY”) and MIG/APG 
("PROVIDER") for the Sherwood West Re-look project. 

WHEREAS, City and Provider are parties to a Contract for Professional Services dated March 11, 2021 in an 
amount not to exceed $136,000 (“Contract”) and; 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Contract as described herein; 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. The scope of Task 3, Concept Plan Alternatives is modified to: 
a. Revise the initial scenarios and assumptions memorandum to reflect “new tools” at the request of the 

CAC. 
b. Add TAC‐CAC Meeting 6, December 15, 2021 (agenda, PPT, preparation, meeting) 
c. Provide Memorandum – Sherwood West Design Studies, February 15, 2022 (coordination and 

preparation) 
d. Add TAC‐CAC Meeting 7, February 23, 2022 (agenda, preparation, meeting) 
e. Research, coordination and calculation of housing capacity under up to three scenarios, including 

assumptions regarding compliance with Metro Title 11 and related state regulations 
f. Coordination meetings (up to 3) with the City and/or project participants (e.g. Metro) 
g. Preparation of three scenario maps 
h. Preparation of two site studies to describe scenario concepts 
i. Preparation of a memorandum describing the above and discussion questions for the TAC‐CAC 
j. TAC and CAC Meeting 8 (agenda, preparation, meeting) 
k.  Bi‐weekly coordination meetings (4 .5‐hour meetings) 

 
2. The cost of these additional scoped services is $29,465 
3. Authorize the City Manager to amend the contract up to $8,500 as contigency.  
4. The total contract amount is increased by $37,965 for a total contact amount of $174,965 
5. All other terms and conditions of the original contract shall remain in full force and effect.  

Effective Date of Contract Addendum No. 1: April 5, 2022, or upon final signature, whichever is later.  

PROVIDER      CITY 

By:_____________________________  By:________________________________ 

 

Printed Name:____________________  Printed Name:________________________ 

 

Title:____________________________  Title:_______________________________ 

 

Date:____________________________  Date:________________________________ 

25



Resolution 2022-019, Staff Report 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: April 5, 2022 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Erika Palmer, Planning Manager  
Through: Keith D. Campbell, City Manager and Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2022-019, Appointing Greg Lampros to the Sherwood Planning 

Commission 
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint Greg Lampros to the Planning Commission? 
 
Background:  
Planning Commissioner Mike Harsch, seated in position #5, 4-year term expired at the end of June 2021.  
This vacancy was not immediately posted and filled because both Planning Commissioner Chair, Jean 
Simson and Planning Commission liaison Doug Scott recognized that the Commission was about to start 
the hearing process on many large projects such as the Comprehensive Plan, Residential Design 
Standards and the Economic Opportunities analysis and it would be challenging getting a new volunteer 
up to speed on all projects. Greg Lampros submitted an application for consideration of appointment to the 
Planning Commission. After reviewing the applications of three potential candidates, and a subsequent 
interview process, the review panel of Planning Commission liaison Councilor Doug Scott; Jean Simson, 
Chair of the Planning Commission; and Erika Palmer, Planning Manager, recommended to Mayor Keith 
Mays that Greg Lampros be appointed to the Commission to fulfill position #5 which new term will expire 
in June 2025. Mayor Keith Mays has recommended this appointment to Council. In accordance with 
Council Rules, all such appointments are subject to the approval of City Council by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2022-019, appointing Greg Lampros to 
the Sherwood Planning Commission. 
 

26



DRAFT 

Resolution 2022-019 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-019 

APPOINTING GREG LAMPROS TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, a Planning Commission vacancy exists due to Mike Harsch’s term expiring; and 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Harsch did not seek reappointment; and  

WHEREAS, this vacancy needs to be filled; and 

WHEREAS, the City posted a request for applications on the City website, and announced the vacancy 
before both the Planning Commission and the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Greg Lampros applied to be appointed and was interviewed by Planning Commission liaison 
Councilor Doug Scott, Planning Commission Chair Jean Simson, and Planning Manager Erika Palmer; 
and  

WHEREAS, the interview panels considered all of the candidates and recommended to Mayor Keith 
Mays that Greg Lampros be appointed to fill said vacancy in the Planning Commission; and  

WHEREAS, Mayor Keith Mays has recommended to Council that Greg Lampros be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Greg Lampros to position #5 for a four-year 
term expiring at the end of June 2025. 

Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 5th of April 2022. 

 
        __________________________ 
         Keith Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
   

27



Resolution 2022-020, Staff Report 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1  
 

City Council Meeting Date: April 5, 2022 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council  
 
FROM: Erika Palmer, Planning Manager  
Through: Keith D. Campbell, City Manager and Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2022-020, Appointing Teresa Montalvo to the Sherwood Planning 

Commission 
 
 
 
Issue:  
Should the Council appoint Teresa Montalvo to the Planning Commission? 
 
Background:  
Planning Commissioner Alexandra Brown, seated in position #1, whose 4-year term expires at the end of 
June 2022, recently resigned because they moved out of Sherwood. Teresa Montalvo submitted an 
application for consideration of appointment to the Planning Commission. After reviewing the applications 
of three potential candidates, and a subsequent interview process, the review panel of Planning 
Commission liaison Councilor Doug Scott; Jean Simson, Chair of the Planning Commission; and Erika 
Palmer, Planning Manager, recommended to Mayor Keith Mays that Teresa Montalvo be appointed to the 
Commission to fulfill position #1 which new term will expire in June 2026. Mayor Keith Mays has 
recommended this appointment to Council. In accordance with Council Rules, all such appointments are 
subject to the approval of City Council by resolution. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2022-020, appointing Teresa Montalvo 
to the Sherwood Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

28



DRAFT 

Resolution 2022-020 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-020 

APPOINTING TERESA MONTALVO TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, a Planning Commission vacancy exists due to Alexandria Brown’s resignation; and 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Brown’s term expires in June 2022; and  

WHEREAS, this vacancy needs to be filled; and 

WHEREAS, the City posted a request for applications on the City website, and announced the vacancy 
before both the Planning Commission and the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Teresa Montalvo applied to be appointed and was interviewed by Planning Commission 
liaison Councilor Doug Scott, Planning Commission Chair Jean Simson, and Planning Manager Erika 
Palmer; and  

WHEREAS, the interview panels considered all of the candidates and recommended to Mayor Keith 
Mays that Teresa Montalvo be appointed to fill said vacancy in the Planning Commission; and  

WHEREAS, Mayor Keith Mays has recommended to Council that Teresa Montalvo be appointed; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 
approval of the City Council by resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Teresa Montalvo to position #1 for a four-year 
term expiring at the end of June 2026. 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

Duly passed by the City Council this 5th of April 2022. 

 
        __________________________ 
         Keith Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
   

29



Resolution 2022-021, Staff Report 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: April 5, 2022 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2022-021, Adopting City Council Pillars, Goals, and Deliverables for 

FY2022-23 
 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council adopt City Council Pillars, Goals, and Deliverables for FY2022-23? 
 
Background: 
On February 5th, 2022, the Sherwood City Council held a special meeting to review and discuss the 
current list and status of goals and activities that were adopted in 2021 and to consider and develop 
revised objectives for the upcoming FY2022-23.  The City contracted with Dr. Mike Mowery from 
Strategic Government Resources (SGR) who lead the meeting and the discussion.  Mr. Mowery provided 
a report on this meeting which is provided as Exhibit A to the staff report. 
 
Using Mr. Mowery’s report City staff worked to refine and create a final working document to help define 
and clarify City Council’s priorities and objectives for FY2022-23. The final work product is provided as 
Exhibit B to the resolution. 
 
By approving this resolution, the City Council is clearly identifying its priorities for the upcoming FY2022-
23. The purpose of adoption of this resolution is to provide to internal and external stakeholders the City 
Council’s priorities. The proposed budget for FY2022-23, and allocation of city resources will be 
prioritized based on the adopted resolution.  
 
Financial Impacts: 
There are no additional direct financial impacts as a result of approving this resolution. The adoption of 
the resolution will be used for future allocations of city resources. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2022-021, adopting City Council 
Pillars, Goals, and Deliverables for FY2022-23. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

30



1

City of Sherwood

Council Retreat Report
February 5, 2022

The City Council of Sherwood, Oregon, held a Council Retreat on Saturday, February 5, 2022.  The 
retreat was held via Zoom and was facilitated by Strategic Government Resources (SGR).  The purpose of 
the retreat was to review and update the Council Goals from 2021.  The retreat was attended by each 
member of the Council, the Mayor, the City Manager, and Department Directors from the City.  It was 
open to the public.

The format of the retreat was to review each of the top goals of the Council from 2021 to determine if 
those goals were still relevant going forward.  The Council discussed this and felt that all of the 6 Goals 
were still relevant for the upcoming year.

These were:

1. Economic Development
2. Infrastructure
3. Livability and Workability
4. Public Safety
5. Fiscal Responsibility
6. Citizen Engagement

After discussing the six major goals, the Council discussed the key objectives under each major goal. If 
objectives had been accomplished, they were removed from the new strategic plan.  In some cases, new 
objectives were added.  Staff provided input throughout the process.

Resolution 2022-021, EXH A to Staff Report 
April 5, 2022, Page 1 of 4

31



2

Below is a record of the Updated Goals and Objectives created by the Council.

Council Goals

2022

Goal 1: Economic Development

A. Promote Strong Diverse Economic Growth Opportunities
Project A.1 – Create or Update a Small Business Guide
Project A.2 – Improve Development Code to Promote stronger economic development
Project A.3 ‐‐ Create Annexation Policies & Processes so that we can manage our growth goals 
as it relates to infrastructure, school capacity, and long‐term community needs
Project A.4 – Prioritization of Infrastructure Development Projects for best ROI
Project A.5 – Bringing Jobs to Sherwood that provide wages that allow people to live and work in 
Sherwood

B. Build Infrastructure to Support New Commercial and Industrial Development
C. Strive toward balancing our Tax Base

Project C.1 – Target Metrics for Jobs/Housing Balance
D. Pursue annexation of Tonquin Employment Area to Open Up Financing Options for 

Infrastructure Funding and Construction
Project D.1 – Incentivize Infrastructure development with TEA and for annexation of “gap” 
properties in TEA

E. Continue Work on Sherwood West Re‐look
F. Work with Metro and regional partners to bring Sherwood West land into UGB

Goal 2: Infrastructure

A. Decide on Recreation Center/Pool Expansion
B. Build Pedestrian Connectors between Sherwood East and West

a. Sunset 99 Bridge
b. Cedar Creek Tunnel

C. Continue to invest in Sherwood Broadband Utility as important infrastructure for our city
Project C.1 – Continue pursuing additional opportunities for Sherwood Broadband beyond City 
Limits including developing shovel ready projects

D. Continue work on visioning and designing new Public Works Building
E. Work toward implementing Parks MP and acquiring new land for Parks and investing in parks 

expansion and improvements
a. Find land west of 99 that can be used to develop a major city park

F. Consider and get input on the city building a single‐story flex building on lot in front of Arts 
Building.

G. Investment in cyber and network security
H. Invest in Business Process Improvements

a. Purchase and/or replace antiquated software

Resolution 2022-021, EXH A to Staff Report 
April 5, 2022, Page 2 of 4

32



3

b. Reconfigure existing system to adapt to current needs
c. Address remote workforce needs

Goal 3: Livability & Workability

A. Continue to support and enhance senior services‐‐consider seeking and obtaining age friendly 
city certification 

B. Promote and monitor diverse housing that will accommodate a wide variety of life stages and 
needs in line with the comp plan; track progress and issues; actively participate, as needed, with 
legislature and rule‐making committees if changes are discussed or needed

C. Design Plan for Cedar Creek Trail Amenities
D. Design and Build Festival Plaza
E. Create Initial Fund for Public Art and leverage those funds for grants
F. Put public art in at least 2 roundabouts or somewhere else in the city
G. Mental Health and Employee Wellness

A. Programs and training for employee wellness
B. Employee and City volunteer recognition and appreciation programs 
C. Programs to encourage innovation and creative solutions and ideas

H. Involve the Community and other government partners in discussions on  the Importance of 
Community Wellness and Mental Health Awareness

Goal 4: Public Safety

A. Continue to Implement Police Staff Plan; Look at potential Staffing Plan for the future, 
including what metrics trigger the need for additional staff
Project A.1 – Fund Additional SRO
Project A.2 – Enhance Visibility and Use of Police Reserve Program

B. Collaborate with School District regarding Safe Routes to School
C. Develop and Provide programs to recruit and retain police officers
D. Ask Traffic Safety Committee to give recommendations on where speed limits need to be 

reduced.
E. Promote Bike and Pedestrian Safety through continued sidewalk improvements and 

sidewalk expansion

Goal 5: Fiscal Responsibility

A. Pursue new Internal and External Revenue Sources
B. Organizational Assessment in order to develop and maintain efficient service delivery
C. Banking RFP

Goal 6: Citizen Engagement

A. Consider Adding Youth Advisory Board
B. Develop a Communication Plan that is Comprehensive and Strategic intended to modernize City‐

Wide Communication

Resolution 2022-021, EXH A to Staff Report 
April 5, 2022, Page 3 of 4

33



4

Project B.1 – Consider all Needed Components
Project B.2 – Create new Website Platform and enhance social media tools
Project B.3 – Evaluate billing methods because of new utility of Broadband as it relates to 
customer service and workload of staff
Project B.4 – Utilize modern communication tools (mobile surveys, text messaging) to solicited 
feedback from residents
Project B.5 – Track, respond and analyze citizen requests through a customer relationship 
management system
Project B.6 – Consider Engagement/Communication Specialist

C. Citizen Engagement Plan
Project C.1 – Develop a comprehensive approach to doing surveys that enables the organization 
to improve both the strategy and execution
Project C.2 – Identify ways to reach out to community and improve it especially as it relates to 
finding out what services people want
Project C.3 – Continue to refine our marketing materials for industry
Project C.4 – Refine Branding

D. Emphasize having a high level of customer‐centric approach to citizens engaging with the city
E. Consider tools and policies to help boards and commissions manage their meetings in an 

efficient and timely manner
F. Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility

Project F.1 – Create a City Statement on DEIA
Project F.2 – Review and Update hiring processes through DEIA

Resolution 2022-021, EXH A to Staff Report 
April 5, 2022, Page 4 of 4

34



DRAFT 

Resolution 2022-021 
April 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit B (1 page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-021 

 
ADOPTING CITY COUNCIL PILLARS, GOALS AND DELIVERABLES FOR FY2022-23 

 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council historically meets early in each calendar year in a goal setting 
session to identify specific Council Goals and Activities for the upcoming year and budget process for the 
upcoming fiscal year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council held a special meeting on February 5th, 2022 to discuss and update their previous 
Council Goals and Activities that were approved by Resolution 2021-027 on May 18th, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the results of this meeting are identified in the attached Exhibit B, FY2022-23 City Council 
Pillars, Goals, and Deliverables document; and 
 
WHEREAS, by approving this document by resolution, Council is clearly identifying its priorities for the 
benefit of City staff to implement as well for the general public to understand the Council priorities and 
objectives for FY2022-23. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Sherwood City Council approves the FY2022-23 Council Pillars, Goals, and Deliverable  

worksheet, attached as Exhibit B to this Resolution. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 5th of April, 2022. 
 
 
              
        Keith Mays, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 
 
    

35



Sherwood City Council FY 2022-23 Pillars-Goals-Deliverables

Pillar 1: Economic Development

Goals:
Promote Strong Diverse Economic Growth Opportunities

Build Infrastructure to Support New Commercial and Industrial Development

Balancing the Tax Base

Work with Metro and regional partners to bring Sherwood West land into UGB

Bring Jobs to Sherwood that provide wages that allow people to live and work in Sherwood

Sherwood West Planning

Tonquin Employment Area

Prioritization of Infrastructure Development Deliverables for Best ROI

Deliverable Time Frame

Deliverables: 0-1 Year 2-3 Years 3+ Years

Deliverable 1:1 Improve Development Code to Promote stronger economic development

1:1(a) Code Audit and Stakeholder Meetings to Determine Opportunity for Improvement X

1:1(b) Process Amendments X

Deliverable 1:2 Create Annexation Policies & Processes to manage our growth goals as it relates to infrastructure, school capacity, & long‐term community needs X

Deliverable 1:3  Target Metrics for Jobs/Housing Balance X

Deliverable 1:4 Completion and Adoption of Sherwood West Re-Look Plan X

Deliverable 1:5 Decision to ask Metro to include Sherwood West into the UGB X X

Deliverable 1:6 Annexation Plan/Policy of Tonquin Employment Area X

Pillar 2: Infrastructure

Goals:
Build Pedestrian Connectors between Sherwood East and West

Continue to invest in Sherwood Broadband Utility as an Important infrastructure for Sherwood and Beyond

New Public Works Facility

Investment in Cyber and Network Security

Invest in Business Process Improvements
Deliverable Time Frame

Deliverables: 0-1 Year 2-3 Years 3+ Years

Deliverable 2:1 Improve Development Code to Promote stronger economic development X X

Deliverable 2:2 Sherwood 99 Pedestrian Bridge 

2:2(a) Sherwood 99 Pedestrian Bridge 100% Design X

2:2(b) Sherwood 99 Pedestrian Bridge Construction X X

Deliverable 2:3 Cedar Creek Pedestrian Tunnel 

2:3(a) Cedar Creek Pedestrian Tunnel Feasibility Study X

2:3(a) Cedar Creek Pedestrian Tunnel 30% Design Study X X
Deliverable 2:4 Complete Sherwood Broadband Fiber to the Home Build Out X X

Deliverable 2:5 Complete YMCA Agreement X
Deliverable 2:6 Purchase and/or replace antiquated software X

Deliverable 2:7 Reconfigure existing software to adapt to current needs X

Deliverable 2:8  Address remote workforce needs X

Deliverable 2:9 Implementation Plan for Parks Master Plan X

Deliverable 2:10 Develop Shovel Ready Fiber Expansion Projects X X X

Pillar 3: Livability & Workability

Goals:
Continue to Support and Enhance Senior Services

Trails and Walkability

Promote and monitor diverse housing that will accommodate a wide variety of life stages and needs

Public Art

Mental Health and Wellness

Investment in Community Gathering Spaces or Community Enhancements

Investment in Parks (Acquire New Land for Parks and Expansion and Improvements of Current Parks)

Deliverable Time Frame

Deliverables: 0-1 Year 2-3 Years 3+ Years

Deliverable 3:1 Consider Obtaining Age Friendly City Certification X

Deliverable 3:2 Design Concepts for single-story flex building on lot in front of Arts Building X

Deliverable 3:3 Design Plan for Cedar Creek Trail Amenities X

Deliverable 3:4 Public Art in Roundabouts  (2x) X

Deliverable 3:5 Build Festival Plaza X

Deliverable 3:6 Create Public Arts Fund to Utilize for Grants X

Deliverable 3:7 Monitor Housing, Track Progress on Issues, Actively Participate, as Needed, with Legislature and Rule Making Committees 

3:7(a) Develop Annual Report on Housing X

3:7(a) Staff Participate in Rule Making & Monitor and Track Changes X

Deliverable 3:8 Employee and City volunteer recognition and appreciation programs X

Deliverable 3:9 Programs to encourage innovation and creative solutions and ideas X

Deliverable 3:10 Involve the Community and other government partners in discussions on the Importance of Community Wellness and Mental Health Awareness X

Pillar 4: Public Safety

Goals:
Public Safety Planning

Collaborate with School District 

Promote Bike and Pedestrian Safety

Promote Driver Safety

Deliverable Time Frame

Deliverables: 0-1 Year 2-3 Years 3+ Years

Deliverable 4:1 Funding Additional SRO X

Deliverable 4:2 Enhance Visibility and Use of Police Reserve Program X

Deliverable 4:3 Work with SSD on Safe Route to School Programs X

Deliverable 4:4 Programs to Recruit and Retain Officers X X X

Deliverable 4:5 Identify and Complete Infill for Sidewalk Improvements/ADA X X

Deliverable 4:6 Develop an Action Plan with County to Improve Safety on County Owned Roads in Sherwood and UGB X X

Deliverable 4:7 Charge Traffic Safety Committee to Review Speed Limits in City Limits X

Pillar 5: Fiscal Responsibility

Goals:
Pursue New Internal and External Revenue Sources

Efficient Service Delivery

Deliverable Time Frame

Deliverables: 0-1 Year 2-3 Years 3+ Years

Deliverable 5:1 Pursue Federal Grants and Monies X X X

Deliverable 5:2 Pursue State Grants and Monies X X X

Deliverable 5:3 Complete Banking RFP X

Deliverable 5:4 Organizational Assessment and Review on Delivery of Services X X

Pillar 6: Citizen Engagement

Goals:
A Communication Plan that is Comprehensive and Strategic to Modernize City‐Wide Communication

A High Level of Customer‐Centric Approach to Citizens Engaging with the City

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility

Engaging with Youth

Efficient Management of Meetings for All Boards and Commissions

Deliverable Time Frame

Deliverables: 0-1 Year 2-3 Years 3+ Years

Deliverable 6:1 Create new Website Platform and Enhance Social Media X

Deliverable 6:2 Evaluate billing of Broadband as it relates to customer service and workload of staff X X

Deliverable 6:3 Utilize modern communication tools (mobile surveys, text messaging) to solicited feedback from residents X X

Deliverable 6:4 Track, respond and analyze citizen requests through a customer relationship management system X

Deliverable 6:5 Consider Engagement/Communication Specialist X

Deliverable 6:6 Develop a comprehensive approach to doing surveys that enables the organization to improve both the strategy and execution X

Deliverable 6:7 Continue to refine our marketing materials for industry X

Deliverable 6:8 Refine Branding X

Deliverable 6:8 Create a City Statement on DEIA X

Deliverable 6:9 Review and Update hiring processes through DEIA X

Deliverable 6:10 Consider Youth Advisory or Similar X

Resolution 2022-021, EXH B 
April 5, 2022, Page 1 of 1

36


	01 City Council Packet Cover 04.05.2022
	02 City Council Mtg Agenda 04.05.2022
	AGENDA

	03  03.15.2022 City Council Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	5. ADJOURNED:
	10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS:
	11. ADJOURN:

	03.1  03.28.2022 City Council Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	5. ADJOURNED:

	04  Resolution 2022-018 Auth Angelo Planning Group Contract Amend - STAFF REPORT
	05  Resolution 2022-018 Auth Angelo Planning Group Contract Amend - DRAFT
	06  Resolution 2022-018 Auth Angelo Planning Group Contract Amend - EXH A
	07  Resolution 2022-019 Appoint Greg Lampros to Planning Comm - STAFF REPORT
	08  Resolution 2022-019 Appoint Greg Lampros to Planning Comm - DRAFT
	APPOINTING GREG LAMPROS TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION

	09  Resolution 2022-020 Appoint Teresa Montalvo to Planning Comm - STAFF REPORT
	10  Resolution 2022-020 Appoint Teresa Montalvo to Planning Comm - DRAFT 
	APPOINTING TERESA MONTALVO TO THE SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION

	11  Resolution 2022-021 Adopt FY2022-23 Council Goals - STAFF REPORT
	12  Resolution 2022-021 Adopt FY2022-23 Council Goals - Exhibit A
	13  Resolution 2022-021 Adopt FY2022-23 Council Goals - DRAFT 
	14  Resolution 2022-021 Adopt FY2022-23 Council Goals - Exhibit B



